AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE 61ST JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

AND

61ST DISTRICT COURT EMPLOYEES INDEPENDENT UNION,

AFFILIATED WITH

THE GRAND RAPIDS EMPLOYEES INDEPENDENT UNION



January 1, 1998 - December 31, 2001

845

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE 61ST JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

AND

61ST DISTRICT COURT EMPLOYEES INDEPENDENT UNION,

AFFILIATED WITH

THE GRAND RAPIDS EMPLOYEES INDEPENDENT UNION



January 1, 1998 - December 31, 2001



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION 1
ARTICLE II. UNION SECURITY & DUES CHECK-OFF. 1
ARTICLE III. MANAGEMENT SECURITY
ARTICLE IV. MANAGEMENT'S RIGHTS
ARTICLE V. SUBCONTRACTING OF BARGAINING UNIT WORK 3
ARTICLE VI. UNION BARGAINING COMMITTEE
ARTICLE VII. SPECIAL MEETINGS
ARTICLE VIII. UNION STEWARDS
ARTICLE IX. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE X. PAYMENT OF BACK PAY CLAIMS
ARTICLE XI. DISCHARGE AND DISCIPLINE
ARTICLE XII. SENIORITY
ARTICLE XIII. JOB POSTING – BIDDING PROCEDURE
ARTICLE XIV. LAYOFF AND RECALL
ARTICLE XV. OVERTIME
ARTICLE XVI. REST PERIOD 17
ARTICLE XVII. NEW OR CHANGED JOBS
ARTICLE XVIII. WAGES 17
ARTICLE XIX. PAY CHANGES
ARTICLE XX. LONGEVITY PAY
ARTICLE XXI. VACATIONS
ARTICLE XXII. HOLIDAYS
ARTICLE XXIII. SICK LEAVE
ARTICLE XXIV. HUMANITARIAN CLAUSE
ARTICLE XXV. LEAVE FOR UNION FUNCTIONS
ARTICLE XXVI. JURY/WITNESS LEAVE
ARTICLE XXVII. LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY. 29
ARTICLE XXVIII. INSURANCE
ARTICLE XXIX. PENSIONS
ARTICLE XXX. MILITARY SERVICE VETERANS.
ARTICLE XXXI. WORKER'S COMPENSATION
ARTICLE XXXII. BULLETIN BOARDS
ARTICLE XXXIII. NO DISCRIMINATION
ARTICLE XXXIV. MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS
ARTICLE XXXV. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
ARTICLE XXXVI. SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS
ARTICLE XXXVII. VALIDITY
ARTICLE XXXVIII. CAR ALLOWANCE AND PARKING.
ARTICLE XXXIX. BONDING
ARTICLE XL. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 35
ARTICLE XLI. SAFETY COMMITTEE

ARTICLE XLII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
ARTICLE XLIII. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION
APPENDIX A
CLASSIFICATION INDEX
APPENDIX B
RESPONSIBILITY AREAS/NUMBER OF UNION STEWARDS
APPENDIX C
SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1998
APPENDIX D
SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1999
APPENDIX E
SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2000
APPENDIX F
SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2001
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING : HOLIDAY OVERTIME
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT
AMENDED HOLIDAY OVERTIME AGREEMENT
CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS EMPLOYMENT RULES53

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into June 17, 1999, between the 61ST JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT, hereinafter referred to as the "Management," and 61ST DISTRICT COURT EMPLOYEES INDEPENDENT UNION, affiliated with THE GRAND RAPIDS EMPLOYEES INDEPENDENT UNION, hereinafter referred to as the "Union." It is the intent and purpose of this Agreement to assure sound and mutually beneficial working and economic relationships between the parties hereto, to provide an orderly and peaceful means of resolving any misunderstandings or differences which may arise, and set forth herein the basic and full agreement between the parties concerning rates of pay, wages, hours of employment and other conditions of employment.

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION

Section 1. Pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable provisions of Act 379 of the Public Acts of 1965, Management recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining unit for those employees in the defined bargaining unit for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment and other conditions of employment. Management will not during the term of this Agreement aid, promote or assist in any way any labor group or organization seeking to represent the employees.

Section 2. The bargaining unit consists of all employees, except those designated as excluded, holding positions in the classifications shown in Appendix A or which may hereafter be added thereto or changed as hereinafter provided.

ARTICLE II. UNION SECURITY & DUES CHECK-OFF

Section 1. Management will make available to all employees entering the bargaining unit a copy of this Agreement calling their attention to the fact that the Union has been recognized as the exclusive bargaining representative for all employees of the bargaining unit.

Section 2. Management will make available to all employees of the bargaining unit, within a reasonable period of time following the execution thereof, a copy of this Agreement.

Section 3. It shall be a condition of employment that all present and future employees in the bargaining unit shall either become and remain members in good standing of the Union or pay to the Union each month a Service Charge in an amount equal to regular monthly Union dues commencing thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Agreement or the beginning of their employment, whichever is later. It shall be the responsibility of the Union to obtain a Union dues or Service Charge deduction authorization from employees.

-1-

Section 4. Management agrees that it will not make a series of seasonal hires for the purpose of filling the permanent bargaining unit position provided for in the budget. It is expressly understood that nothing contained in this Agreement will limit the rights of Management to hire seasonal employees in connection with various social action, intern, or governmentally assisted programs, nor limit the rights of Management to make seasonal hires to fill positions temporarily opened as a result of a leave of absence, sick leave, vacation or similar reasons. Before seasonal employees are hired by the Court during a time when one (1) or more bargaining unit members are laid off from employment by the Court, representatives of the Court and the Union will meet for the purpose of reviewing the Court's decision to make seasonal hires and reviewing suggested alternatives made by the Union.

Section 5. Upon written authorization from an employee covered by this Agreement, Management will deduct Union membership dues or service charges from the employee's pay on each payday. The employee's authorization for dues or Service Charge deduction shall remain in full force and effect during the period of this Contract and may be revoked only by written notice given during the period thirty (30) days immediately prior to the expiration of this Contract. The termination must be given both to the Employee and to the Union.

Section 6. Remittance of Dues to Financial Officers. Deductions shall be remitted to such address as shall be designated, to the designated officer of The Grand Rapids Employees Independent Union, with an alphabetical list of names of all employees from whom deductions have been made no later than ten (10) days following the date of which they were deducted. The Employer shall additionally indicate the amounts deducted and notify the financial officer of the Union of the names of the employees who, through a change in their employment status, are no longer subject to deductions and further advise said financial officer by submission of an alphabetical list of all new hires since the date of submission of the previous remittance of dues.

Section 7. The Union will indemnify and hold Management harmless against any claims made and against suit instituted against it on account of the application of this Article.

Section 8. The Union agrees to refund to the employee any amount improperly deducted by Management and to limit Management's liability to the remittance of dues actually deducted from the employee's pay.

ARTICLE III. MANAGEMENT SECURITY

Section 1. The Union and employees agree that during the life of this Agreement they will not cause, encourage, participate in or support any strike or picketing against Management or any slowdown or other interruption of or interference with the normal functions of Management. Violation of this paragraph shall be

-2--

grounds for disciplinary action up to and including discharge. Any employee who is accused of violating this provision and denies such alleged violation may appeal to the grievance procedure. Upon a finding of fact that the employee did violate the provisions of this article, the disciplinary action imposed by Management shall not be disturbed.

ARTICLE IV. MANAGEMENT'S RIGHTS

Section 1. The Union recognizes that the prerogatives of the Court to operate and manage its affairs in all respects in accordance with its responsibility and the powers or authority which the Court has not officially abridged, delegated, or modified by this Agreement are retained by the Court. These Management Rights include, but are not limited to, the following:

Section 2. Utilization of personnel, methods, and processes and manner of performing work; to manage and direct the work force; to hire, schedule, promote, transfer, assign, train or retrain employees in positions with the Court; to suspend, demote, discharge, or take other appropriate action against the employees for just cause.

Section 3. To determine the size and composition of the work force, to eliminate or discontinue any job or classification and to lay off employees; to establish job qualifications for hiring and acceptable standards of job performance; to establish work rules, rules of conduct and safety.

Section 4. To schedule work and overtime as required in the manner most advantageous to the Court. The Court will attempt to afford overtime assignments equally, insofar as practical, among employees who normally perform the work within a classification and department.

Section 5. Management, in exercising these functions, will not discriminate against any employee because of his or her membership in the Union.

ARTICLE V. SUBCONTRACTING OF BARGAINING UNIT WORK

Section 1. The right of contracting or subcontracting is vested in Management. Such right shall not be exercised for the sole purpose or intention of undermining the Union nor for the sole purpose or intention of discriminating against any of its members.

Section 2. No employee's job will be abolished through subcontracting without giving the Union thirty (30) days advance notice and only when it is not feasible or economical for Court employees to perform such work. During the thirty (30) day notice period, representatives of the Court and the Union will meet for the purpose of reviewing the Court's analysis of the feasibility or economics of the case and to give the Union an opportunity to make a proposal for adjustments of the contract to eliminate the need for such subcontracting.

—3—

ARTICLE VI. UNION BARGAINING COMMITTEE

Section 1. The bargaining committee of the Union will include not more than four (4) bargaining unit members who are employees of the 61st Judicial District Court. If more than one (1) member is selected for the Committee from any single department of the Court, if the needs of the service require, the Court may refuse permission for more than one (1) member from the Department to be absent at the same time. It may also include non-employee representatives of the Union, not more than four (4) in number. The Union will give to Management in writing the names of its employee representatives on the bargaining committee on or before October 1 immediately prior to the expiration of the Agreement. Permanent substitutions made in the Union bargaining committee shall be promptly reported to Management.

Section 2. Employee members of the bargaining committee will be paid by Management for time spent in negotiations with Management but only for the straight-time hours they would otherwise have worked on their regular work schedule. For the purpose of computing overtime, time spent in negotiations shall be considered as hours worked to the extent of the regular work schedule hours which otherwise would have been worked by the Committee person.

ARTICLE VII. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Section 1. Management and the Union agree to meet and confer on matters of interest upon the written request of either party. The written request shall state the nature of the matters to be discussed and the reason(s) for requesting the meeting. Discussion shall be limited to matters set forth in the request, but it is understood that these special meetings shall not be used to renegotiate this Agreement. Special meetings shall be held within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the written request and shall be held between 8:00 A.M. and 4:00 P.M. at a time and place designated by Management. Each party shall be represented by not more than three (3) persons at special meetings.

Section 2. The Union representatives may meet at a place designated by Management, on Management's property, for a period not to exceed one-half (1/2) hour immediately preceding a meeting for which a written request has been made.

Section 3. Employee representatives of the Union at special meetings will be paid by Management for time spent in special meetings but only for the straight-time hours they would otherwise have worked on their regular work schedule. For the purpose of computing overtime, time spent in special meetings shall be considered as hours worked to the extent of the regular work schedule hours which they otherwise would have worked.

-4--

Section 4. The "Special Meeting and Grievance Pass for Union Officials" Form shall be used by a Union representative in order for the employee to be released from his/her regular work station with pay to attend a special meeting with Management, provided the Court wishes to use such form.

ARTICLE VIII. UNION STEWARDS

Section 1. Employees within the bargaining unit shall be represented by a Chief Steward and Stewards in areas of the Court employment in the number and manner set forth in Appendix B. The Union shall furnish Management a list every March and September of the Stewards' names and their assigned areas and shall keep the list current at all times.

Section 2. When requested by an aggrieved employee, a Steward shall be scheduled as soon as possible to investigate any alleged or actual grievance in his/her assigned work area and assist in its presentation (including reducing the grievance to writing if necessary). He or she shall be allowed reasonable time therefor during working hours without loss of time or pay, upon notification and approval of his/her immediate supervisor outside the bargaining unit.

Section 3. When an employee presents his or her own grievance without intervention of a Union Steward, the Steward shall be given an opportunity to be present and shall be allowed the time therefor, paid at his or her regular rate, upon notification and approval of his/her immediate supervisor outside of the bargaining unit.

Section 4. Union business, other than that cited above, shall be conducted so as not to interfere with the work assignment of Stewards or any other employees, and only with the permission of the Management.

Section 5. In the event the regularly assigned Steward is not available, the Chief Steward may act on his/her behalf.

Section 6. A non-employee Union representative may consult with employees in assembly areas before the start of each work shift or after the end thereof.

Section 7. The Steward or Chief Steward shall be allowed reasonable time, paid at his or her regular rate, during his or her regularly scheduled workday, to confer with Management on matters affecting the administration of this Agreement, upon notification and approval of his/her immediate supervisor outside of the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE IX. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1. Grievance

a. A grievance is any dispute, controversy or difference between Management and a bargaining unit employee or employees on any issues with respect to, on account of or concerning the meaning, interpretation or application of this Agreement or any terms or provisions thereof. This shall not be interpreted to include arbitration concerning renegotiation of the Agreement or its parts.

- b. A grievance shall refer to the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement alleged to have been violated. Any grievance not conforming to the provisions of this paragraph shall be denied.
- c. At any step, Management or the Union shall have the discretion to consolidate or combine multiple grievances relating to a single incident.

Section 2. Grievance Time Limits and Exclusive Remedy

- a. Any grievance not initiated, advanced to the next step or answered within the time limits specified herein will be considered settled on the basis of the last answer by Management, if the Union does not advance it to the next step within the time limits, or on the basis of the Union's last demand, if Management fails to give its answer within the time limit. Time limits may be extended only by mutual written agreement of Union and Management.
- b. If proceedings involving any matter which is or might be alleged as a grievance are instituted in any administrative action before a government board or agency, or in any court, then such administrative or judicial procedures shall be the sole remedy, and grounds for a grievance under this Agreement shall no longer exist.

Section 3. Grievances will be processed in the following manner and within the stated time limits.

- Step 1. Any potential grievance may be discussed verbally by the potential grievant and the Steward with the Supervisor and the Court Administrator or Deputy Administrator. If the matter is not resolved in such discussion, it may be initiated as a grievance in Step 1a.
- Step la. The grievance shall be reduced to writing, be signed by the aggrieved employee or group of employees and by the Steward, and be presented to the or Division Head within fifteen (15) working days of its occurrence, not including the day of occurrence. The grievance shall be prepared in detail and be dated. The Department or Division Head will reply to the grievance in writing within ten (10) working days of the date of the presentation of the written grievance, not including the day of presentation.
- Step 2a. If the grievance is not settled at Step 1, the written grievance shall be presented to the Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator within seven (7) working days after the Department Head's response is given, not including the day the response is given. The grievance shall be presented along with all pertinent correspondence to date. Within ten (10) working days of such presentation, not including the day of

-6-

presentation, the Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator shall meet with no more than three (3) representatives of the Union, one (1) of whom must be an aggrieved employee, provided that if the grievance is filed by more than one (1) employee, the Union may have present its representatives and aggrieved employees equal in number to Management representatives attending the meeting, not less than three (3). The Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator will reply to the grievance in writing within ten (10) working days after the date of such meeting. Such reply will be given to the Steward either personally or by mail postmarked no later than the last day specified herein for such reply.

Step 2b. The Union may initiate its grievances at this Step 2 of the grievance procedure and must process them through Step 2 before they are taken to Step 3. A Union grievance is one in which a right given by this Agreement to the Union as such is alleged to have been violated or is one in which the employee's immediate supervisor did not take the action complained of or is one in which the action complained of represents Court policy. Such grievances must be initiated in writing within ten (10) working days of their occurrence, not including the day of occurrence. Within ten (10) working days of such presentation, the Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator shall meet with no more than three representatives of the Union to discuss the grievance. The Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator shall reply to the grievance in writing within ten (10) working days of such meeting, not including the day of presentation. If not settled by such answer, the grievance may be appealed to Step 3.

Step 3. Arbitration

a. If the matter remains unresolved and the Union wishes to carry the matter further, the Union will notify the Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator of its intent to refer the matter to arbitration. Such notice will be sent within forty-five (45) calendar days after the Union's receipt of his response at Step 2. Within seven (7) calendar days thereafter, Management and the Union will arrange for a pre-arbitration conference.

The purpose of the pre-arbitration conference shall be to attempt to resolve the dispute. If the matter cannot be resolved, the parties shall attempt to select an arbitrator as described in the Letter of Understanding attached to this Agreement and in accordance with the procedure specified therein. If the parties are unable to select an arbitrator by that method and the Union desires to proceed with arbitration, it shall within fifteen (15) days after the conference

—7—

submit a Demand for Arbitration with the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. If the Union fails to give written notice to the arbitrator so selected (with a copy to the Court) within forty-five (45) days thereafter, the grievance shall be deemed withdrawn.

- b. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS). The power of the arbitrator shall be limited to the interpretation and application of the express terms of this Agreement and shall have no power to alter, add to, subtract from or otherwise modify the terms of this Agreement as written. His decision on grievances within his/her jurisdiction shall be final and binding on the employee or employees involved, the Union and Management.
- c. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be paid by the party which loses the appeal to arbitration except as the arbitrator directs otherwise. Each party shall fully bear its costs regarding witnesses and any other persons it requests to attend the arbitration. The Chief Steward may attend the arbitration hearing and such will not cause him/her to lose time or pay.
- d. The grievant has the option to proceed to the Chief Judge in lieu of arbitration to satisfy Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure. The Chief Judge's decision shall also be binding on all parties.

Section 4. Election of Remedies

- a. It is expressly understood and agreed that taking an appeal to the Arbitrator or Chief Judge constitutes an election of remedies and a waiver of any and all rights of the appealing party and any person or persons he, she or it represents to litigate or otherwise contest the appealed subject matter in any court, administrative agency, or other forum.
- b. It is expressly understood and agreed that taking an appeal of any action of the Court to any State or Federal Civil Rights Agency constitutes an election of remedies and a waiver of any and all rights of the individual, the Union or any other person to grieve or arbitrate the action which brought about the appeal.
- c. Either Management or the Union may request a meeting prior to arbitration, whereby attempt at settlement can be made, either prior to or after the selection of the Arbitrator, or decision to arbitrate.

ARTICLE X. PAYMENT OF BACK PAY CLAIMS

Section 1. Back wages and fringe benefits shall be paid to any employee upon a finding that said employee is entitled thereto, in such amounts as may be determined through the grievance procedure.

-8-

Section 2. No claim for back pay or wages and fringe benefits shall exceed the amount of pay or wages and fringe benefits the employee would otherwise have earned at his/her regular pay or wage rate and fringe benefits. However, any such award may be decreased by such earnings received from other employment or unemployment compensation during the recognized entitled period.

ARTICLE XI. DISCHARGE AND DISCIPLINE

Section 1. In cases of discharge or discipline, a representative of Management shall give prompt notice thereof to the employee and the employee's Steward or the Chief Steward. Such notice shall be confirmed in writing within three (3) working days following the day of discharge or imposition of discipline, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, holidays and the day of occurrence. In cases of letters of warning, such letters shall be given to the employee affected and a copy thereof to such employee's Steward or the Chief Steward.

Section 2. The affected employee will be allowed to discuss his/her discharge or discipline with his or her Steward. In the case of discharge or suspension, Management will make available a room where the employee may discuss the matter with the Steward before being required to leave the Employer's property. The time allowed for such purpose shall not exceed a reasonable time as determined by Management.

Section 3.

- a. In imposing any discipline on a current charge, Management will not take into account any prior infractions which occurred more than two (2) years previously, provided the employee is not subjected to disciplinary action (excluding letters of warning), during the two (2) year period, nor impose discipline on an employee for falsification of his employment application after a period of two (2) years from his/her date of hire. In the event an employee completes two (2) years of service without a disciplinary action, letters of warning and/or suspension over two (2) years old shall be permanently removed from his/her personnel file upon request of the Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator.
- b. Every employee shall be entitled to and shall receive a copy of any and all notices or complaints filed by an employee, supervisor or any other Court officer or Department or Division Head in the employee's personnel record which relates to, is or may be made the basis for disciplinary action up to and including discharge of such employee by the Court.

Section 4. If Management has the reason to warn or reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that is consistent with good employee relationship principles.

Section 5. The Court shall have the right to require an employee to be tested for the presence of alcohol or drugs if it has reasonable cause to believe that the Employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

Section 6.

- a. Rules of conduct dealing with job related activity by Court employees have existed for years, and will continue in effect.
- b. However, it is also recognized that since the Court is both a public institution and an agency whose personnel administer the civil and criminal laws, the conduct of its staff is also important for the proper operation of the Court.
- c. At a minimum, this means that Court personnel can be expected to observe the law at all times and that violation of the law constitutes unacceptable conduct by those whose duty it is to administer it.
- d. To that end, it is understood that the fact of conviction of either a felony or of a non-traffic misdemeanor which involves theft, fraud or dishonesty (including issuance of non-sufficient fund checks), an assaultive or sex offense, malicious destruction of property or possession or trafficking in drugs or controlled substances constitutes just cause for disciplinary action by the Court up to and including discharge.

ARTICLE XII. SENIORITY

Section 1. Definition. Seniority shall mean the status attained by length of continuous service with the Court. Seniority for all purposes under this Agreement shall include continuous service time with the City of Grand Rapids for those employees of record employed before January 1, 1989. Any individual employed on or after January 1, 1989, who has prior continuous service with the City of Grand Rapids shall have such service time credited only for the purpose of establishing seniority or service credit for time measured fringe benefits, such as vacation and sick leave accumulation and accrual, pension and longevity but not for purposes of layoff, recall, promotions and transfers, acting assignment or preference for vacation time off.

Section 2. Accrual of Seniority.

- a. Seniority shall begin with the last day of entering service of the Courts except as provided in Section 1. Two (2) or more persons who enter the service on the same day shall have their relative seniority determined by their social security number, the person with the highest number having the greater seniority.
- b. In the event of layoffs, the designated Stewards shall be retained in positions in their respective areas of representation and the Chief Steward shall be retained in a position in Court service regardless of their respective positions

—10—

on the seniority list so long as there is a position to be filled in their respective areas of service in the case of the Stewards or in the Court's service in the case of the Chief Steward which such Steward or Chief Steward has the ability to perform. It is the intention of this provision that Stewards and the Chief Steward will have only a right to remain in their respective areas of representation so long as there is work available which they can perform and not a right to occupy any specific position. If such person has the ability to perform the duties of more than one (1) position, he/she will be assigned to a position in a pay range as close to his/her present pay range as possible.

c. All original appointments shall be probationary subject to a probationary period of six (6) months after appointment. At any time during the probationary period the Chief Judge/Court Administrator may discipline or discharge an employee whose performance does not meet the required work standards. The Union shall represent the probationary employees for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment and other conditions of employment, except for discipline and discharge for reasons other than Union activities.

Section 3. Loss of Seniority.

- a. Discharge if not reversed.
- b. Resignation. An employee who is absent for three (3) consecutive normally scheduled workdays, without notifying his/her Departmental supervisor or the Court Administrator's Office of a valid reason for such absence, and who has no legitimate reason for not giving such notification of his/her absence, may be considered as having resigned.
- c. Unexcused failure to return to work when recalled from layoff, as set forth in the recall procedure.
- d. Unexcused failure to return to work after expiration of a formal leave of absence.
- e. Retirement.
- f. Layoff for a continuous period of six (6) months or the length of an employee's seniority, whichever is greater.

Section 4. Seniority Lists. Management shall maintain seniority lists of employees by departments, arranged in alphabetical order, showing the employee name, address, job title, department or division, and date of hire. Management shall furnish a copy to the Chief Steward and Union in March and September of each year. In the event that conditions beyond the general control of Management prevent preparation of seniority lists as herein provided, Management will so inform the Union, giving the reasons for the delay and the projected preparation date.

-11-

Section 5. Application of Seniority. Seniority shall apply for purposes of vacation, layoff and recall, acting assignments, promotions and transfers, as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

- a. Transfers. When a bargaining unit vacancy occurs and is posted pursuant to Article XIII, the position shall be filled by transfer of the most senior applicant from within the same position class. An employee so transferred shall have up to three (3) months to demonstrate his or her ability to perform the work of the position to which transferred and shall be returned to his/her former position if Management determines that he/she is unable to perform the work satisfactorily. Within the first month of the transfer and where the employee and the employer agree, the employee may voluntarily return to his/her previous position.
- b. If the position is not filled by transfer of an applicant from within the same position class, it shall be filled by promotion from a promotional eligible list before a new hire.

ARTICLE XIII. JOB POSTING – BIDDING PROCEDURE

Section 1. When the Court elects to fill a newly created or vacant position(s) within the bargaining unit, the position(s) shall be posted for a period of at least seven (7) workdays. Such notice will set forth the title, salary range, and the requirements for the position and shall be posted in each Department/ Division. Interested employees shall apply in writing within the seven (7) workday posting period.

Section 2. All employees who apply for the position will be included on the promotional eligible list. The promotional eligible list shall apply to the specific position to be filled as indicated on the posting. Although not required, the Court may administer any written or oral test it considers necessary or appropriate to evaluate applicants. The Court, however, shall not be required to release scores and rankings.

Section 3. All applicants will be considered for the promotion to the vacancy after the requested lateral transfers (within the same classification) are made. Regardless of any rule, regulation or requirement to the contrary, the Court shall have the authority to select from any of the individuals on the promotional eligible list, provided that no individual shall be hired off an entrance eligible list so long as there is (are) an employee(s) on the promotional eligible list. Any applicant on the promotional eligible list who has more seniority than the individual selected for the vacancy will, upon request made in writing, be given a statement of the reason(s) why the applicant was not selected, provided however it is understood that the Court's decision and selection and the reasons given therefore are not subject to challenge in the grievance and arbitration procedure. The eligible list will remain in effect until the selected employee

-12-

completes his/her trial or probationary period (whichever is applicable) and will not be used to fill other vacancies in that classification (for which a new posting, bidding and appointment process will be used). A copy of the eligible list will be sent to the Chief Steward along with the name of the person who was awarded the position.

Section 4. Court employees who have completed their initial probationary period and who are promoted will be required to serve a trial period of six (6) months. During that trial period, the employee's performance shall be evaluated at the end of three (3) months and the appointment shall become final if a final evaluation at the end of the six (6) month trial period is satisfactory. If the six month evaluation shows that the employee's performance is not satisfactory, the employee shall be returned to his/her previous position. During the first month of the trial period, the employee may elect to return to his/her previous position. After the first month, the employee may return to his/her prior position only upon approval of the Court.

ARTICLE XIV. LAYOFF AND RECALL

Section 1. Definition. Layoff shall mean the separation of employees from the active work force due to lack of work or funds or to abolition of positions because of changes in organization.

Section 2. Order of Layoff.

a. Except as provided below, the layoff of permanent employees in any Department or Division shall be in inverse order of seniority in the position classes affected. Temporary and probationary employees shall be laid off before any permanent employees.

Section 3. Demotion or Transfer in Lieu of Layoff. Except as provided below, an employee subject to layoff who so requests within three (3) days after receipt of notice of layoff, shall in lieu of layoff under Section 2 be demoted or transferred by Management in accordance with his or her seniority to an equal or lower paying position in the bargaining unit which he or she is able to perform and qualified to fill, in the following order of priority, provided however, that such employee has more seniority than the employee being displaced:

- a. The least senior employee in the employee's classification anywhere in the Court. If none, then:
- b. The least senior employee in the next lower classification anywhere in the Court. If none, then:
- c. The least senior employee in the second lower classification anywhere in the Court.
- d. This process shall be repeated until no further displacement is possible.

Management shall have the exclusive right to determine such person's ability and qualifications to fill a position with recourse to the grievance or other appeals procedure. Management shall determine such person's ability and qualifications to fill a position by administering such tests as it may deem appropriate. It is understood, however, that an employee shall be deemed to be qualified to fill all classifications in a job series (i.e., Clerk-Typist, Deputy Court Clerk I, II, III and IV; Court Recorder, and Court Bailiff I, II and III) which are below his/her present job classification.

It is also understood that a Court Recorder who is not re-appointed by a newly elected Judge may be demoted in lieu of layoff to the position of Deputy Clerk III if he or she is determined to have the ability and qualifications for the position and has more seniority than the least senior Deputy Clerk III.

If an employee (other than a Court Recorder) is demoted or transferred in lieu of layoff and his or her regular classification subsequently becomes available, he or she shall thereupon be promoted or transferred back to his/her regular classification.

Section 4. Exceptions to Seniority. The Chief Judge may approve deviations from seniority in layoffs or demotions in lieu of layoff when seniority alone would result in retaining employees who are physically or mentally unable to perform the full scope of their duties or unable to maintain a satisfactory level of performance in the Department or Division affected. In such cases, the affected employees shall be given written notice of the determination and the reasons therefor.

Section 5. Notice of Layoff Employees to be laid off indefinitely shall be given at least seven (7) calendar days prior notice, except in situations beyond control of the Court.

Section 6. Recall from Layoff.

- a. Employees to be recalled from layoff shall be given a minimum of ten (10) calendar days to respond after notice has been sent by certified mail to their last known address.
- b. Employees who decline recall or who, in the absence of extenuating circumstances, fail to respond as directed within the time allowed, shall be presumed to have resigned and their names shall be removed from seniority and preferred eligible lists.
- c. Names shall remain on the recall list for six (6) months or the length of their seniority, whichever is greater, unless removed as provided. Employees shall be recalled from layoff or shall be restored to positions from which demoted before any other persons are selected for employment or promotion in those classes; provided, however, they have the ability and qualifications therefor as determined by Management or as provided in Section 3 above.

—14—

Section 7. Layoff Compensation. Under the Michigan Employment Security Act for public employees, the Court has elected to become a reimbursing employer for unemployment compensation. The Michigan Employment Security Commission will review all applications for unemployment compensation and those individuals eligible under the Act will be paid their benefits directly from the State, in accordance with the MES Act.

ARTICLE XV. OVERTIME

Section 1. Purpose. The following provision shall govern compensation for overtime to employees of the Court.

Section 2. Employees Covered.

a. Employees holding the positions listed in Appendix A are eligible for overtime compensation.

Section 3. Definitions.

- a. Normal workday and work week. The normal workday for full-time employees shall be eight (8) hours per day (not including lunch periods), five (5) consecutive days per week. The normal work week for all full-time employees shall be forty (40) hours per week, Monday through Friday, unless scheduled otherwise in accordance with Paragraph b. of this Section.
- b. If work schedules are to be changed for more than five (5) consecutive workdays and the need for such change is known to Management for more than seventy-two (72) hours in advance, openings on such work schedules shall be posted for at least twenty-four (24) hours and shall be filled on the basis of seniority within the classification within a department.
- c. Overtime. Overtime shall consist of authorized work in excess of the normal number of hours in any scheduled work week/day, not including meal periods. Overtime of less than twenty (20) minutes in any workday shall not be included in determining the total number of hours worked. Thereafter, overtime shall be computed to the nearest half hour (1/2).
- d. All overtime shall be authorized by a Management Supervisor. Employees so assigned shall work such overtime unless excused by a Management Supervisor. Management will attempt to equalize overtime within a Department/Division among the respective classifications during the life of this Agreement.

Section 4. Method of Compensating for Overtime Work.

- a. Overtime shall be paid at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's hourly rate.
- b. For the purpose of computing overtime, an employee absent on authorized sick

leave with pay, jury leave with pay, holiday or vacation shall be considered to have worked his or her normal work shifts during such absence. Employees absent on unpaid leave shall not be considered to have worked during such absence.

- c. (1) At the request of any employee eligible for overtime pay indicated to the supervisor at the time the overtime is worked, the supervisor may provide that, in lieu of payment for overtime, the employee be allowed time off with pay at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) hours for each hour worked over the normal number of hours in his/her scheduled work week; provided that the employee has worked at least one-half (1/2) hour of continuous overtime, and provided further that any overtime worked during the lunch period must be initiated by Management in order to qualify for compensatory time off. An employee may accumulate up to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) hours in a calendar year.
 - (2) Any such time off shall be taken at a time mutually agreed upon by the employee and his/her supervisor. All compensatory time earned during a calendar year must be used within the calendar year.
 - (3) Employees may request payment of earned compensatory time at any time during the calendar year. Payment will be based on the rate of pay in effect at the time of the request and will be processed with the next regular payroll cycle. Any accumulated compensatory time not used or paid out within the calendar year in which it was accrued will be paid to an employee at the employee's regular hourly rate as of December 31.
 - (4) This compensatory time provision will be administered in accordance with State and Federal law.

Section 5. Call Back Pay.

a. An employee called to work at a time other than his or her scheduled work shift shall be credited with a minimum of four (4) hours at his or her regular hourly rate, or with the actual hours worked at one and one-half (1-1/2) times his or her hourly rate, whichever is the greater, unless such time shall be continuous with his or her scheduled work in which case the employee shall be paid at his or her overtime rate. This provision shall apply to those employees who have completed their regularly scheduled work week and are required to report to work for work on Saturday.

Section 6. Bargaining Unit Work.

a. Supervisory personnel outside of the bargaining unit shall not, except in emergency situations, or for instruction purposes, perform overtime work normally performed by employees covered by this Agreement if they gain thereby any benefit in the form of compensatory time off or overtime pay.

—16—

b. In the event that it is found that uniformed or supervisory personnel are regularly performing work which is normally assigned to bargaining unit personnel, Management will make every effort to correct the situation as quickly as possible. These provisions will not apply to emergency or instructional situations.

Section 7. Saturday or Sunday Work. An employee shall be paid one and one-half (1-1/2) times his/her hourly rate for all hours worked on Saturday and Sunday, except for employees whose regular work schedule includes Saturday and Sunday.

ARTICLE XVI. REST PERIOD

Section 1. Management shall allow one (1) fifteen (15) minute rest period during each one-half (1/2) shift of the workday; such periods shall be scheduled in accordance with department rules.

ARTICLE XVII NEW OR CHANGED JOBS

Section 1. Existing classifications and job descriptions may be changed during the term of this Agreement, but only after notice of intended change is given to the Union and, if requested within ten (10) days thereafter, a special meeting is held thereon. New positions may be established and the salary range determined by the Court in accordance with Court Budget requirements. The parties will negotiate as to whether or not new or changed positions should be included in the bargaining unit. Failing agreement, the matter shall be resolved through determination by the Michigan Employment Relations Commission. If any bargaining unit job is changed or newly created, the rate of pay shall be subject to negotiation by the parties.

ARTICLE XVIII. WAGES

Section 1. Wages for employees covered by this Agreement shall be in accordance with the schedule set forth in Appendices C, D, E and F. Wage increases will be as follows: January 1, 1998, 3.5%; January 1, 1999, 3.4%; January 1, 2000, 3.0%; and January 1, 2001, 3.33% compounded.

Section 2. For the purpose of this Section, the second shift is defined as any work period commencing between the hours of 1:59 p.m. and 9:59 p.m. The third shift is defined as any work period commencing between the hours of 9:59 p.m. and 4:59 a.m.

The following shift differentials shall apply:

60 cents/hour – 2nd shift 65 cents/hour – 3rd shift

-17-

ARTICLE XIX. PAY CHANGES

Section 1. Purpose. The following provisions shall govern the assignment of pay steps to employees of the Court.

Section 2. Definitions for Purpose of this Article.

- a. *Promotion* shall mean a change in employment to a position class which has a higher maximum salary.
- b. *Demotion* shall mean a change in employment to a position class which has a lower maximum salary.
- c. *Transfer* shall mean a change in employment to another position in any class which has the same maximum salary and similar duties and qualifications.
- d. *Reclassification* shall mean the changing of a position from one class to another based on the duties involved.
- e. *Salary Step Increase* shall mean an increase in compensation to the next higher step in the same pay range.
- f. *Acting Assignment* shall mean an assignment for a limited time to a position class as determined by the needs of the service; such assignment not involving promotion or change of status, notwithstanding any provision or rule to the contrary.

Section 3. Anniversary Dates For Salary Step Increases.

- a. Establishment
 - (1) Original Employment and Re-employment. The date one (1) year after completion of the probation period and the corresponding date each year thereafter.
 - (2) Promotion. The date one (1) year after completion of the trial period and the corresponding date each year thereafter.
 - (3) Transfer. The anniversary date remains unchanged.
 - (4) Demotion. The date six (6) months after the effective date thereof and the corresponding date each year thereafter.
 - (5) Reclassification. The date six (6) months after the effective date thereof and the corresponding date in each year thereafter.
- b. Postponement of Anniversary Date. Layoff, formal leave of absence or other separations from the payroll in excess of sixty (60) days shall postpone the anniversary date for the total period of separation, but time previously served toward the next anniversary date shall be credited when employees return to the payroll.

-18-

Section 4. Compensation Determinations.

- a. Original Employment and Re-employment. Employees shall be employed at the lowest step for their position class, unless the Chief Judge/Court Administrator determines that the needs of the service require that compensation be fixed at a higher salary step.
- b. End of Probation. The employee's salary automatically increases to the next higher step at the end of the probationary period.
- c. Anniversary Date.
 - (1) Prior to the occurrence of each anniversary date, every employee who has not already obtained his/her highest salary step shall be considered for a salary step increase on such date. Such consideration shall be made by the employee's supervisor.
 - (2) Each consideration found to be in good order by the employee's supervisor shall be referred to the Chief Judge/Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator for final determination.
 - (3) Pay increases on anniversary dates shall not be based merely on the passage of time but, rather, shall be given based on merit relative to the requirements of the position. Employee performance shall be evaluated semi-annually; however, performance deficiency shall be brought to the attention of the employee as noted by the supervisor and documented. Merit increases shall not be denied except for proper cause.
 - (4) In the event a pay increase is not given on an anniversary date, such increase may be given prior to the next anniversary date if the employee's work performance increases to a satisfactory level relative to the requirements of the positions. Accordingly, an employee shall be evaluated every three months and a satisfactory rating shall entitle an employee to the step increase.
- d. Promotion or Upward Reclassification. Employees who are promoted or whose positions are reclassified to a class in a higher pay range shall initially be paid either (1) at the first salary step in such range which is higher than the salary received immediately before such promotion or reclassification or (2) twenty cents (\$.20) per hour over their former rate, whichever is greater. Promoted or upwardly reclassified employees shall be eligible for a step increase six (6) months after date of promotion or upward reclassification.
- e. Working Out of Classification. If filling a position on an acting basis becomes necessary, employees within the Department or Division affected will be given first preference for the position, then other Court employees will be given preference. Where consistent with the needs of the service, the acting

-19-

assignment shall be offered to the most senior qualified employee in the appropriate classification in the department, as determined by Management. If an employee works on acting assignment to a higher position class pursuant to a written order from Management, the employee shall be paid either (1) at the first salary step in the acting assignment range which is higher than the employee's current salary or (2) twenty cents (\$.20) per hour over their former rate, whichever is greater, for all hours so worked, computed to the nearest full hour.

When an employee is regularly assigned for a part of his or her time to work that falls in another classification, the nature of the work and the amount of time on such assignment will be a proper consideration in establishing the classification to the position.

If a formal training program to upgrade employees' skills is put into effect, those employees who apply and qualify for such training will be paid at the rate of their regular job during such training period, and it is understood that the training program will not be utilized by Management as a means to subvert the intent of the acting assignment provisions of this Article.

- f. Transfers. An employee who is transferred shall initially be paid at the same salary step in effect immediately before such transfer.
- g. Demotion and Downward Reclassification. An employee who is demoted or whose position is reclassified to a class in a lower pay range shall initially be paid at the same salary step in the range for the lower position which had been received in the higher position, unless the Chief Judge shall determine that it be in the best interest of Management to assign a higher authorized salary step or unless he or she previously held a higher step in the lower class in which case he or she shall be at the higher salary step.

Section 5. Effective Date of Changes in Compensation. All changes in compensation shall be effective on the day of the change.

ARTICLE XX. LONGEVITY PAY

Section 1. Purpose. The following provisions shall govern the assignment of longevity pay steps to employees of the Court.

Section 2. Definitions.

a. *Longevity Pay* shall mean a salary additive payment based on length of continuous service paid periodically to employees, adjusted at specified intervals in accordance with the following schedule:

-20-

Service Years	Longevity Pay	
5 through 9	Ll	\$250
10 through 14	L2	420
15 through 19	L3	600
20 through 24	L4	720
25 and over	L5	925

- b. Longevity Qualification Date shall mean the date on which an employee completes five (5), ten (10), fifteen (15), twenty (20), or twenty-five (25) years of continuous service.
- c. *Longevity Earning Date* shall mean the date an employee begins to earn longevity pay and shall be the first day of the month immediately following his or her longevity qualification date.
- d. Continuous Service shall mean service uninterrupted by resignation or discharge.

Section 3. Payment of Longevity Pay

- a. Longevity Pay shall be paid on an employee's cumulative base salary during the earnings period immediately preceding June 1 or December 1.
- b. Longevity Pay shall be for periods of service from June 1 to November 30, payable on the first pay date in December, and December 1 to May 31, payable on the first pay date in June.
- c. Eligible employees will receive their longevity pay in checks separate from their normal paychecks.

Section 4. Effect of Layoff and Leave of Absence on Longevity Qualification Date.

- a. An unpaid leave of absence or a layoff of sixty (60) days or less shall not postpone the longevity qualifications date of an employee.
- b. An unpaid leave of absence (except Military) or layoff in excess of sixty (60) days shall postpone the longevity qualification date for the total period of separation, but time previously served toward the next longevity qualification date shall be credited when the employee returns to the payroll.

Section 5. Effect of Service Interruption on Longevity Pay

- a. An employee who for any reason terminates employment with the Court prior to June 1 or December 1 shall receive longevity pay on a prorated time basis for the full calendar months served.
- b. An employee absent from service due to leave of absence or unpaid leave shall receive longevity pay on a prorated time basis for full calendar months

-21-

served and it shall be payable upon the return to service of such employee.

c. Employees who work twelve (12) or more days in any calendar month shall earn longevity credit for that month.

ARTICLE XXI. VACATIONS

Section 1. Definitions

- a. Service shall mean any period of time for which an employee receives wages.
- b. *Vacation Day* shall mean a period of time equal to eight (8) hours of one (1) regularly scheduled normal workday.
- c. *Work Week* shall mean a period of time equal to forty (40) hours or the normal number of hours worked by an employee during a regular work schedule.
- d. *Continuous Service* shall mean service, as defined by "a" above, uninterrupted by resignation or discharge.

Section 2. Vacation Allowance

- a. An employee with less than five (5) years of continuous service shall earn eleven-twelfths (11/12) of a workday of vacation for each calendar month of service to a maximum of eleven (11) workdays per year.
- b. Each new employee who has successfully completed the entrance probationary period shall be credited with one (1) vacation day which may be used any time thereafter.
- c. On the first day of each calendar year following completion of the fifth (5th) through nineteenth (19th) year of continuous service, an employee may accrue an additional day (cumulatively each year) of vacation so that on January 1st following the nineteenth (19th) year of continuous service an employee may be eligible for a total of twenty-six (26) workdays of vacation, as follows:

Years Of	Vacation Days Credited On
Continuous Service	The Following January 1
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 Years 6 Years	11 Days 11 Days 11 Days 11 Days 11 Days 12 Days 13 Days
7 Years 8 Years	14 Days 15 Days
9 Years	16 Days

-22-

Years Of Continuous Service	Vacation Days Credited On The Following January 1
10 Years	17 Days
11 Years	18 Days
12 Years	19 Days
13 Years	20 Days
14 Years	21 Days
15 Years	22 Days
16 Years	23 Days
17 Years	24 Days
18 Years	25 Days
19 Years	26 Days
20 Years	26 Days
21+ Years	26 Days

c. An employee shall become eligible for one-twelfth (1/12) of the appropriate vacation allowance under subparagraph "a" and "b" above each calendar month in which he or she works twelve (12) or more days.

Section 3. Use of Vacation

a. Vacations shall be scheduled with due regard for seniority, employee preference and needs of the service. After May 1 of each year an employee who has not used his/her seniority to select a vacation period shall not be permitted to use seniority to require another employee to give up his or her previously scheduled vacation period. Vacations must be approved in writing by the Department Supervisor in advance no later than the workday before such vacation time is to be used. Exceptions may be made in emergency situations, or upon approval of the Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator/ Chief Judge.

An employee requesting to use vacation time not scheduled in advance, must notify the Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator/Chief Judge for approval as promptly as practical, depending on the circumstances, not later than one-half (1/2) hour following the start of his/her scheduled shift. Failure to do so may result in denial of his/her claim for paid vacation time. Vacation time not approved in advance may be subject to verification. Vacation time may not be used in lieu of sick leave when an employee has sick leave available.

b. Employees shall be allowed to maintain a maximum accumulation of forty (40) days of vacation from one fiscal year to another. Any earned vacation in excess of forty (40) days shall be considered void, provided, however, that any employee may maintain a balance of 60 days between the period of January 1 and August 31.

-23-

- c. A general paid holiday which occurs during a vacation period may be added thereto or to accrued vacation days.
- d. Cash payment in lieu of unused vacation shall be made only upon termination of employment. Upon terminations, the employee shall be paid in full to the nearest one half (1/2) day for all unused vacation up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) workdays (five (5) work weeks) provided that in the event termination is caused by the death of the employee the maximum payment limitation shall not apply.
- e. One vacation day may be used on the day of occurrence of the employee's birthday or thirty (30) days following the occurrence at the employee's discretion in order to observe the birthday as a full day off.

Section 4. Vacation/Compensatory Time Pay Advances. An employee going on vacation/compensatory time off who so requests shall be paid in advance and shall make a pay assignment to the City Comptroller in consideration thereof. Pay advances shall not exceed amounts for which departmental payrolls have been prepared or are in process, less any prior obligations.

ARTICLE XXII. HOLIDAYS

Section 1. Holiday Pay. Holiday pay is compensation paid for time during which work would normally be performed, said work having been suspended by reason of a general holiday.

Section 2. Holidays

a. The following shall be general paid holidays for employees:

January I	Labor Day
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day	Veteran's Day
Presidents Day	Thanksgiving Day
Good Friday	Day after Thanksgiving
Memorial Day	Christmas Eve
July 4	December 25

The days on which the above holidays are celebrated shall be the same as those observed by the United States Government.

- b. Whenever any of the above holidays falls on Saturday, the Friday immediately preceding shall be considered as the holiday.
- c. Whenever any of the above holidays falls on Sunday, the Monday immediately following shall be considered as the holiday.
- d. In the event December 25 (Christmas Day) falls on Saturday, the Christmas Eve holiday shall be considered as the immediately preceding Thursday. In

the event December 25 (Christmas Day) falls on Monday, the Christmas Eve holiday shall be considered as the immediately preceding Friday.

- e. All Court employees shall be credited with the number of hours in their normal work shift for each of the above holidays except as further provided herein; provided, that no employee shall receive credit for more than twelve (12) holidays in any calendar year.
- f. To be eligible for holiday pay credits an employee shall have worked his/her scheduled workday immediately preceding and immediately following any general paid holiday or be on approved leave of absence on such day or days.
- g. On Columbus Day and National Election Day, employees will report to work, even though Court itself will not be in session.
- h. An employee on formal unpaid leave of absence or layoff (removed from the payroll) shall not receive holiday pay credits during such leave.
- i. On general paid holidays only those employees shall be on duty whose services are necessary.

Section 3. Method of Compensation for Holiday Work

- a. Employees eligible for overtime pay as provided in the overtime provisions who are required to work on a general paid holiday shall be paid at one and one-half (1-1/2) times their hourly rates for such hours worked, in addition to the number of work hours credited as provided in "e" above.
- b. If any of the above holidays falls on an employee's regular day off, the employee will be credited with the number of work hours for such day, as provided in "e" above. In such cases, the unworked holiday hours shall not be included as hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime.
- c. General paid holidays shall not be charged as vacation or sick leave.
- d. Employees absent unexcused on a general paid holiday on which they are scheduled to work shall receive no pay for that day.

ARTICLE XXIII. SICK LEAVE

Section 1. Definitions

- a. *Immediate Family* shall be the following: spouse, child, parents, grandparents, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law of the employee.
- b. *Service* shall mean any period of time for which an employee receives wages.

-25-

c. *Supplemental Employment* shall mean a paid off-duty job, including selfemployment, covered by sick leave benefits, health and accident insurance, Worker's Compensation or any combination thereof.

Section 2. Sick Leave Accumulation

- a. An employee shall accumulate one (I) day of sick leave for each calendar month of service in which he/she works twelve (12) or more complete days.
- b. Unused sick leave days shall accumulate from year to year to an unlimited amount.

Section 3. Recording Use of Sick Leave. Sick leave shall be charged to the nearest one-half (1/2) hour. When an employee is required to be absent less than two (2) hours in order to keep a doctor or dentist appointment, sick leave shall not be charged. The employee must present a signed appointment card from the doctor or dentist.

Section 4. Permitted Uses

- a. Regular Use. An employee shall be entitled to use accumulated paid sick leave for any absence necessitated by a disabling personal illness or by off-duty injury, not incurred in supplemental employment, upon application approved by the Department or Division Head.
- b. Emergency Use
 - (1) An employee shall be entitled to take up to two (2) days paid leave, without charge to sick leave, upon the death of any member of his or her immediate family. For the purpose of this provision only, immediate family shall include grandchildren, son or daughter-in-law, and grandparent-in-law.
 - (2) An employee shall be entitled to use up to three (3) days of his or her accumulated paid sick leave for any absence necessitated by serious injury or acute illness (that requires emergency medical treatment or professional attention) of his or her spouse, child, parent or parent-in-law or by the death of the foregoing persons or the employee's grandparent, grandchild, brother or sister upon application approved by the Department or Division Head. Extension of time shall be permitted in exceptional circumstances upon application approved by the Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator.
- c. Family Use

An employee may use up to five (5) days of accumulated paid sick leave for any absence necessitated by illness for an employee's minor child, residing in the employee's household, and/or the employee's current spouse. Such use shall be limited to a maximum of three (3) occurrences or five (5) days,

-26-

whichever occurs first, per calendar year. Use of this time, excluding the first sixteen (16) hours used, will be included in the employee's unsubstantiated time calculation, unless appropriate substantiation is provided.

- d. Vacation Use. An employee shall be entitled to use his or her accumulated paid sick leave in lieu of vacation for illness or injury received while on vacation, upon application approved by his or her Department or Division Head and subject to substantiation as hereinafter provided. Application for such use must be made within one (1) week of return from vacation.
- e. Blood Donation. An employee will be permitted two absences per year for the purpose of donating blood (in addition to the City's blood donation program), such absences to be considered the same as "Doctor's time" and subject to the same conditions.

Section 5. Excluded Use

- a. Paid sick leave shall not be authorized:
 - (1) For personal injury incurred in supplemental employment,
 - (2) For simple illness or disability in the immediate family of an employee, not requiring emergency medical treatment, or professional attention, or
 - (3) For personal convenience or private business, recreational purposes, or supplemental employment.
 - (4) The parties agree that the sick leave provisions of Article XXII of the Labor Agreement between the Court and the Union shall not apply in the following circumstance. No benefits shall be paid to any employee claiming said benefits if the employee is found to have performed any work while on sick leave. For purposes of this stipulation, the term "any work" shall not include such work activity in and around the home of the employee when said work is not detrimental to recovery from the illness or injury causing the absence as determined by the City Physician.

Section 6. Substantiation. An employee shall provide such medical substantiation for use of sick leave as may be required by his/her Department Head. Intentional falsification of any sick leave affidavit or fraudulent use of sick leave shall be grounds for disciplinary action up to and including discharge.

Section 7. Physical Examination. An employee on authorized absence for more than ten (10) days due to illness or for any period due to injury shall return to duty only after an examination and release for work by the Management Physician. In the event of a dispute, the question shall be subject to the grievance procedure and the grievance shall be presented at the Step 3 level.

Section 8. Unpaid Sick Leave. The Court Administrator or Deputy Court Administrator shall, upon the advice and recommendation of the Management

—27—

Physician, grant unpaid sick leave for up to one (1) year upon application of any employee whose paid sick leave is exhausted. Any extension of such leave shall be subject to the Management Rules.

Section 9. Pay of Unused Sick Leave. Unused accumulated sick leave shall be paid to employees who resign or retire with ten (10) years or more of continuous service, to a maximum of ninety (90) days at the rate of One Dollar (\$1.00) per day times the years of continuous service for employees retiring, and at the rate of Fifty Cents (\$.50) per day times the years of continuous service for persons resigning.

Section 10. Notification. An employee who expects to be absent on sick leave must personally notify his/her Department Supervisor or the office of the Court Administrator as promptly as practical, depending on the circumstances, not later than the beginning of his/her scheduled shift. Failure to do so may result in denial of his/her claim for paid sick leave. The employee shall report his or her status every third working day of absence unless hospitalized.

ARTICLE XXIV. HUMANITARIAN CLAUSE

Section 1. Should an employee covered by this Agreement become physically or mentally handicapped to the extent he or she cannot perform his or her regular job, Management will make every effort to place the employee in a position that he or she is physically and mentally able to perform; in so doing, Management will attempt to place the employee in a position as close as possible to his or her previous wage level.

Section 2. On an individual basis, employees within the bargaining unit may donate accrued compensatory or vacation time to another employee in the unit if (a) the recipient or a member of his/her immediate family (as defined in Article XXIII, Section la) is sick, or in the case of death of an immediate family member, and (b) all of the recipient's accumulated sick, compensatory and vacation time has been exhausted (or, in the case of vacation time, its use has not previously been approved by the recipient's supervisor). Time so donated shall be considered as time used and, in the case where the hourly rates of the donor and recipient are different, the dollar value of the time donated shall be adjusted to the nearest quarter hour.

ARTICLE XXV. LEAVE FOR UNION FUNCTIONS

Section 1. Management will grant a total of up to five (5) workdays of leave of absence with pay per year for members of the Union to attend functions of the Union, provided such leave is requested in advance and the needs of the service will not be adversely affected by such absence. Such days shall be accumulative for the life of this Agreement, and any balance shall be carried over to a successor Agreement, to a maximum of seven (7) days (56 hours).

ARTICLE XXVI. JURY/WITNESS LEAVE

Section 1. Employees shall be given leave of absence with pay for working time lost when called to serve on jury duty or if subpoenaed to give testimony involving their official capacity or work with the Court. Such employees shall be paid at their regular rate for all working time lost up to forty (40) hours per week. In consideration of receiving their regular pay, employees shall assign to the Court all remuneration received for jury duty or as witness fees during the same period, excluding mileage.

ARTICLE XXVII. LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

Section 1. An employee who has completed his/her entrance probationary period may be granted a leave without pay by the Court for a period not to exceed one (1) year (365 days) unless an extension is approved by the Court. Such leaves shall be granted for sickness, disability, military training or other good and sufficient reasons.

Section 2. When an employee returns from a leave of absence, he/she shall be returned to the position that was held at the time the leave was granted. Employees shall retain, but not accrue, seniority while on any leave of absence (except military) provided the leave is in excess of sixty (60) days.

ARTICLE XXVIII. INSURANCE

Section 1. Management shall, at its expense, provide a group hospital, medical vision, surgical insurance and dental insurance policy to all employees within the bargaining unit which shall provide coverage for the employee and the employee's dependents as defined in said policy, provided that the coverage of said policy shall not be less than the coverage of the present policy provided by Management to employees.

Effective July 1, 1999, all employees shall be covered by a single insurance plan, currently referred to as the Unified Plan.

It is understood by the parties that the employer has the right to name the administrative agent, provided that there is no change in the negotiated benefits.

Management further agrees to set aside a sum not to exceed \$50,000 per year expressly to deal with unforeseen problems arising from the implementation of the Unified Plan. The disbursement of the funds and the general overseeing of the plan shall be the responsibility of a joint committee created from all Unions represented in the plan and members of the Human Resources Department.

It is further understood by the parties that there will be a moratorium on any changes in health care benefits and cost sharing for the period from July 1, 1999, to January 1, 2003.

—29—

Section 2.

a. Management shall, at its expense, provide a \$20,000 cash payment to each employee within the bargaining unit which benefit shall be payable to the beneficiary or beneficiaries of any such employee whose death does not result from an injury arising out of and in the course of his or her employment with the Court. Said benefit shall be payable to the beneficiary or beneficiaries of the employee's choice as designated on the "Designation of Beneficiary" forms which shall be provided by Management and shall be kept on file in the Court Personnel Office. Employees shall have the right to change the beneficiary or beneficiaries at any time during their employment with the Court by executing a "Change of Beneficiary" form as provided by Management. In case an employee dies and is not survived by a designated beneficiary, or fails to execute a "Designation of Beneficiary" form, said death benefits shall be payable to the administrator of executor of the estate of the deceased employee.

All rights to such death benefits shall terminate upon termination of employment by reason of discharge, retirement, resignation or layoff. Termination of employment shall be deemed to occur when an employee ceases to be employed by Management, except that any employee who is granted a leave of absence because of disability or an approved maternity leave will nevertheless be considered still employed. Termination of employment shall not be deemed to include an employee who is under suspension for disciplinary reasons or an employee who shall have been unlawfully dismissed.

- b. In the event an employee dies and the employee's death occurs as a result of personal injury arising out of and in the course of his or her employment with Management and the amount of benefits which would be payable under the Worker's Compensation Act would amount to less than \$20,000.00, Management shall make a lump sum cash payment equal to the difference between the amount of \$20,000 and the total Worker's Compensation benefits, to the employee's beneficiary or beneficiaries designated on the "Designation of Beneficiary" form provided by Management, or in the absence of execution of said form, to the administrator or executor of the employee's estate.
 - (1) For the purpose of determining the lump sum cash payment payable under the provisions of this section, Management shall compute the "total Worker's Compensation benefits" as of the date of the employee's injury under the circumstances and considering the number of dependents at that time. The "total Worker's Compensation benefits" shall be computed to include (a) the total weekly benefits provided by the Worker's Compensation Act multiplied by the number of weeks payable (presently 500 weeks), (b) medical expenses payable, (c) burial expenses payable,

and (d) any disability payments which have been paid or have become due for injury which is the proximate cause of death.

- (2) For the purpose of computing the "total Worker's Compensation benefits," the spouse and minor children of the deceased employee and any person or persons partially dependent upon the deceased employee within the meaning of the Worker's Compensation Act shall be considered wholly dependent upon the deceased employee.
- (3) Provisions of the Section 2b shall not be affected in any way by an election by the dependents of a deceased employee to receive Duty Disability Benefits under the provisions of the City Code in lieu of benefits under the Worker's Compensation Act.
- c. No benefits shall be payable under this section unless written application for such benefits is filed with Management by the beneficiary or beneficiaries of the deceased employee designated on the "Designation of Beneficiary" form or by the administrator or executor of the estate of the said deceased employee within one (1) year after the employee's death or within one (1) year after the beneficiaries, administrator or executor of the estate shall have knowledge or reasonably should have knowledge of their right to make a claim, whichever occurs later.
- d. In the event that the beneficiary, beneficiaries or the estate of the deceased employee shall be paid benefits under subsection "a" thereof and compensation or benefits are subsequently paid or awarded for the same death to any person or persons under the Duty Disability Provision of the City Code or as a result of any proceeding instituted under the Worker's Compensation Act against the Court, the beneficiary, beneficiaries or estate of the deceased employee, as the case may be, shall be liable and shall repay to Management the amount equal to the compensation of Duty Disability Benefits which are paid or awarded up to the sum of \$20,000.
- e. In the event that an employee dies within two (2) years after coverage is extended to the employee under this Section 2, and it is determined that the employee's death was due to suicide, no benefits shall be payable to any party or parties under this Section.
- f. No determination, presumption or finding made by Management in the application of any of the provisions of Section 2 shall be binding upon Management in any proceeding of the Worker's Compensation Act nor shall the same be an admission of liability under said Act.
- g. No action at law or in equity shall be brought by any person or persons to recover any provisions of this Section prior to the expiration of ninety (90) days after application for benefits and proof of death has been filed with Management pursuant to subsection "c".



Section 3.

- a. Management will pay the hospitalization insurance premium for the retiree and his/her dependents from the time the employee retires and until the time such retiree becomes eligible for Medicare or similar national health insurance benefits provided that: 1) the employee retires with thirty (30) years of service and is at least fifty (50) years old; or 2) the employee is at least sixty-two (62) years old and has eight (8) years of service; or 3) the employee is disabled pursuant to the provisions of the pension ordinance.
- b. If a member who retires after January 1, 1997, under the above provisions dies prior to attaining age 65, the City shall provide insurance coverage at its cost for the member's dependents until such time as the member would have reached 65 years of age. In addition, such coverage will also be provided if an active employee had reached 20 years of service at the time of his/ her death.

ARTICLE XXIX; PENSIONS

Section 1. The pension plan presently in effect for Court Employees shall be continued for the life of this Agreement, provided that effective January 1, 1990 the Court will pick up 1% of the employees' contributory share of the cost of the Pension Plan.

Section 2. Effective January 1, 1990, the Pension Ordinance shall be amended to reduce the present five years final average salary factor to three years. Such amendment shall apply to employees of record who retire on or after January 1, 1990.

Section 3. A supplement to the pension benefit currently received by retirees may occur annually in the form of a thirteenth pension check during the month of January. The issuance of said check will depend upon the availability of an accumulation of fifty percent (50%) of the actuarial determined net annual book value investment returns in excess of eight percent (8%) from Benefit and Casualty Reserve Funds. The amount available for distribution in any given year will be the average of the last five (5) years accumulation.

Section 4. Effective with the first pay period on or after ratification of this Agreement a Trust Fund will be created for making payments toward premium for the existing supplement to Medicare plan in the same manner as done by the City of Grand Rapids for employees represented by the Union.

Section 5. Effective January 1, 1995, for future retirees a) the pension multiplier factor shall be increased to 2.5. The Court will assume one percent (1%) of the actuarial cost of such improvement, and the remaining actuarial cost shall be added to the employee's contribution rate to the pension plan; b) the B-option survivor benefit actuarial reduction shall be frozen after 40 years of service; and

____32___

c) the spousal death-in-service benefit shall not be actuarially reduced if death occurs after eligibility for early pension but prior to eligibility for full pension.

Section 6. Effective December 1998, an employee may purchase up to twentyfour (24) additional months of credited service in increments of one (1) month by contributing a percentage of the member's annual rate of compensation at the time of such purchase. Any such period of purchased credited service shall be recognized solely for the purpose of computing the member's life allowance as provided in Section 1.205 of the General Pension System and not for determining eligibility for a benefit or for any other purpose. The purchase rate, expressed as a percentage of compensation, shall be the age and service cost component of the normal cost as determined by the system's actuary.

ARTICLE XXX. MILITARY SERVICE VETERANS

Section 1. The reemployment of military service veterans shall be in accordance with the applicable statutes in effect at the time of the reemployment.

ARTICLE XXXI. WORKER'S COMPENSATION

Section 1. Management shall, for a period not to exceed twenty-six (26) weeks, supplement without charge to sick leave or vacation, Worker's Compensation for employees injured on the job by the difference between Worker's Compensation and their normal weekly earning, excluding overtime. The supplement shall be determined in such a manner that insures that an employee's worker's compensation and supplement when combined shall not exceed his or her allowable take home pay.

Section 2. In the event an employee receives sick leave compensation and subsequently such employee is awarded Worker's Compensation for the same period of time, the employee shall reimburse Management for such amounts received as sick leave compensation and Management shall credit the employee's sick leave account with the number of days so used as sick leave.

ARTICLE XXXII. BULLETIN BOARDS

Section 1. Management shall provide space for bulletin boards in mutually acceptable locations to be used by the Union for posting notices of interest to its members.

Section 2. The Union will supervise the placement of material on the Union bulletin boards. Only material authorized by the Chief Steward will be posted thereon. Management will call to the attention of the Union any posted material it considers objectionable and it will have the material removed if it is inconsistent with the spirit of this Article.

—33—

ARTICLE XXXIII. NO DISCRIMINATION

Section 1. The parties hereto agree that they shall not discriminate contrary to state or federal law. There will be no discrimination against any employee because of his/her duties as a Union official, steward, or committee member.

Section 2. Management and the Union acknowledge their continuing responsibility to carry on equal employment practices whereby all employees will be given equal opportunity to be employed in positions which provide the greatest opportunity for use of their abilities.

ARTICLE XXXIV. MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS

Section 1. Management agrees that all conditions of employment not otherwise provided for herein relating to wages, hours of work, overtime differentials and general working conditions shall be maintained at the standards in effect at the time of the signing of this Agreement, and the conditions of employment shall be improved wherever specific provisions for improvement are made elsewhere in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXXV. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Section 1. In the absence of the Management or Union representatives who are authorized by this Agreement to take a specified action, such action may be taken by the person whom the Union or Management authorized in writing to perform such action. The Deputy Court Administrator is authorized to act for the Court Administrator.

ARTICLE XXXVI. SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS

Section 1. All supplemental agreements modifying this Agreement are subject to approval by duly authorized representatives of Management and the Union.

ARTICLE XXXVII. VALIDITY

Section 1. If any portion of this Agreement is found to be illegal, such illegality shall not in any way affect any other parts of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXXVIII. CAR ALLOWANCE AND PARKING

Section 1. Employees properly authorized and directed by Management to use their personal automobiles in the performance of Court business shall be paid twenty-five (\$.25) cents per mile for such use.

Section 2. Management agrees to provide free parking space for all bargaining unit employees who are employed in the City Hall, Justice Building, and Police Headquarters and who drive their personal automobile to work. If the Court is

—34—

relocated during the life of this Agreement, this Section will, upon written request, be subject to renegotiations.

Section 3. The City will move up to fifteen (15) people in the unit to the top of the waiting list for ramp parking, provided they commit to pay the monthly parking fees for the full year(s) when parking spots become available. This option may be exercised only once, shortly after approval of the 1998-2001 contract. The union will submit the list of eligible names to the court.

ARTICLE XXXIX. BONDING

Section 1. Should the Employer require any employee to give bond, cash bond shall not be compulsory, and any premium involved shall be paid by the Employer.

ARTICLE XL. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

Section 1. Each employee in the bargaining unit will be eligible to receive reimbursement for the costs of college tuition in accordance with the following provisions:

- a. The employee must receive a final course grade of a "C" or better or must pass the course if there is no grade given. Courses for reimbursement must be approved by the Court in advance.
- b. Only tuition costs are subject to being reimbursed (e.g., books and lab fees would not be reimbursed).
- c. Each employee may be entitled to receive reimbursement for up to 4 courses per fiscal year, maximum of \$300 reimbursement for any course, subject to availability of funds.
- d. Each request for tuition reimbursement shall be submitted to the Court Administrator along with a brief explanation as to how the course will benefit the employee in his/her employment with the Court.

Section 2. Each request shall be considered on its merits and no request shall be unreasonably denied; except that limited availability of funds may cause some requests to be denied because funds are not available.

ARTICLE XLI. SAFETY COMMITTEE

Section 1. The Union and Management agree to establish a Safety Committee consisting of not more than 3 members appointed by the Union and 3 members appointed by Management. The committee shall meet at reasonable times for the purpose of considering and recommending action on Safety issues that may be of concern to Bargaining Union members or to the Court. Union members shall not lose time or pay for time spent during regular working hours in Safety Committee meetings.

-35-

ARTICLE XLII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

During negotiations, each party had the right to make proposals with respect to all bargainable matters. This sets forth the basic and full Agreement between the parties. During its life, neither will require the other to engage in further collective bargaining as to any matter whether mentioned herein or not, even though such matter(s) may or may not have been known or contemplated by the parties at the time of negotiations or signing of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XLIII. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION

Section 1. This Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 1998, and continue in full force and effect until 11:59 P.M. on December 31, 2001. The parties agree to begin negotiations on the amendment, modification, extension and/or renewal of this Agreement between November 1 and November 15, 2001.

Section 2. If either party desires to terminate this Agreement, it shall, sixty (60) days prior to the termination date, give written notice of termination. If neither party shall give notice of amendment as hereinafter provided, or if each party giving a notice of termination withdraws the same prior to termination date, this Agreement shall continue in effect from year to year thereafter subject to notice of termination by either party on sixty (60) days written notice prior to the current year's termination date.

Section 3. If either party desires to modify or change this Agreement, it shall, sixty (60) days prior to the termination date or any subsequent termination date, give written notice of amendment, in which event the notice of amendment shall set forth the nature of the amendment or amendments desired. If notice of amendment of this Agreement has been given in accordance with this paragraph, this Agreement may be terminated by either party on its termination date or any time thereafter on ten (10) days written notice of termination. Any amendments that may be agreed upon shall become and be a part of this Agreement without modifying or changing any of the terms of this Agreement.

Section 4. Notice of Termination or Modification. Notice shall be in writing and shall be sufficient if sent by certified mail, addressed, if to the Union, at its regular address, Grand Rapids, Michigan, and if to Management, to the 61st Judicial District Court, Grand Rapids, Michigan, or to any such address as the Union or the Management may make available to each other.

—36—

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives this 17 day of June, 1999.

61ST WDICIAL DISTRICT COURT B١ Chief Judge

WITNESSES:

behalf

0

urt Administrator

61st District Court Employees Independent Union, Affiliated with The Grand Rapids Employees Independent Union

Chief Steward

Bargaining Committee Member

Bargaining Committee Member

lamer E-

rand Rapids Are Grand Rapids Employees Independent Union

nes K. Willes Deputy/Co urt Administrator

The Ci

of

-37-

APPENDIX A

Classification Title	Code No.	Salary Range	Salary Steps
Clerk Typist	E01	4E	7
Urinalysis Technician	E02	lE	1
Court Bailiff	E06	12E	7
Court Recorder	E10	14E	7
Lead Work Crew Supervisor	E12	17E	7
Work Crew Supervisor	E15	16E	7
Court Collections Officer	E16	16E	7
Deputy Court Clerk I	E20	9E	7
Deputy Court Clerk II	E21	12E	7
Deputy Court Clerk III	E22	14E	7
Deputy Court Clerk IV	E24	18E	7

CLASSIFICATION INDEX

The bargaining unit shall consist of the above-identified classifications in the following bargaining unit:

All regular full time and regular part-time employees of The 61st District Court, excluding all supervisory, confidential, professional, and seasonal employees, all elected officials, all employees who work less than 12 hours per week, and all other employees.

APPENDIX B

RESPONSIBILITY AREAS/NUMBER OF UNION STEWARDS

Responsibility Areas (locations) and Number of Union Stewards

Traffic Division	1
Civil Division, Real Estate & Small Claims & Admin.	1
Probation and Reporters	1
Criminal Division and Assignment Clerk	_1
Total	4

APPENDIX C

SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1998 GREIU EMPLOYEES

CLERK TYPIST Code E01 - Range 4E			Cod	DEPUT CLERI le E20 - R	KI	DEPUTY CLERK II Code E21 - Range 12E			
H A B C D E F	20,064 21,270 21,894 22,777 23,379 24,197 25,016	$\begin{array}{c} 9.6462 \\ 10.2258 \\ 10.5260 \\ 10.9503 \\ 11.2401 \\ 11.6334 \\ 12.0267 \end{array}$	H A B C D E F	23,509 25,016 25,812 26,716 27,491 28,525 29,752	11.3022 12.0267 12.4097 12.8444 13.2170 13.7138 14.3037	H A B C D E F	25,941 27,491 28,525 29,752 30,828 31,904 33,175	$\begin{array}{c} 12.4718\\ 13.2170\\ 13.7138\\ 14.3037\\ 14.8212\\ 15.3387\\ 15.9494 \end{array}$	
	DEPUTY CLERK III			DEPU7 CLERK			BAILI	FF	
Cod	le E22 - R		Cod	e E24 - R	ange 18E	Cod	e E06 - R		
H A B C D E F	27,986 29,752 30,828 31,904 33,175 34,423 35,693	13,4550 14.3037 14.8212 15.3387 15.9494 16.5497 17.1603	H A B C D E F	32,507 34,423 35,693 37.071 38,557 39,870 41,248	$\begin{array}{c} 15.6285\\ 16.5497\\ 17.1603\\ 17.8227\\ 18.5369\\ 19.1682\\ 19.8306 \end{array}$	H A B C D E F	25,941 27,491 28,525 29,752 30,828 31,904 33,175	$\begin{array}{c} 12.4718\\ 13.2170\\ 13.7138\\ 14.3037\\ 14.8212\\ 15.3387\\ 15.9494 \end{array}$	
	COURT RECORDER			URINALYSIS TECHNICIAN			WORK CREW SUPERVISOR		
Co	de E10 - F			le E02 - F		Code E15 - Range 16E			
H A B C	27,986 29,752 30,828 31,904	13.4550 14.3037 14.8212 15.3387	Н	18,234	8.7665	H A B C	30,096 31,904 33,175 34,423 35,693	14.4693 15.3387 15.9494 16.5497	
D E F	33,175 34,423 35,693	15.9494 16.5497 17.1603				D E F	37,071 38,557	17.1603 17.8227 18.5369	
E F	34,423	15.9494 16.5497 17.1603 RT DNS OFF	C	LEAD W REW SUI e E12 - R	PRVSR	E	37,071	17.8227	
E F	34,423 35,693 COUF	15.9494 16.5497 17.1603 RT DNS OFF	C	REW SU	PRVSR	E	37,071	17.8227	

APPENDIX D

SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1999 GREIU EMPLOYEES

CLERK TYPIST Code E01 - Range 4E			Co	DEPUT CLERI de E20 - F	KI	DEPUTY CLERK II Code E21 - Range 12E			
H A B C D E F	20,746 21,993 22,639 23,551 24,174 25,020 25,866	9.9742 10.5735 10.8839 11.3226 11.6223 12.0289 12.4356	H A B C D E F	24,308 25,866 26,690 27,625 28,426 29,495 30,763	11.6865 12.4356 12.8316 13.2811 13.6664 14.1801 14.7900	H A B C D E F	26,823 28,426 29,495 30,763 31,876 32,989 34,303	12.8958 13.6664 14.1801 14.7900 15.3251 15.8602 16.4917	
Cod	DEPUTY CLERK III Code E22 - Range 14E			DEPU CLERK le E24 - R	IV	BAILIFF Code E06 - Range 12E			
H A B C D E F	28,938 30,763 31,876 32,989 34,303 35,594 36,907	13.9125 14.7900 15.3251 15.8602 16.4917 17.1124 17.7438	H A B C D E F	33,613 35,594 36,907 38,332 39,868 41,225 42,650	16.1599 17.1124 17.7438 18.4287 19.1672 19.8199 20.5048	H A B C D E F	26,823 28,426 29,495 30,763 31,876 32,989 34,303	12.8958 13.6664 14.1801 14.7900 15.3251 15.8602 16.4917	
Co	COUR RECORI de E10 - R	DER	URINALYSIS TECHNICIAN Code E02 - Range 1E			WORK CREW SUPERVISOR Code E15 - Range 16E			
H A B C D E F	28,938 30,763 31,876 32,989 34,303 35,594 36,907	13.9125 14.7900 15.3251 15.8602 16.4917 17.1124 17.7438	Н	18,854	9.0646	H A B C D E F	31,120 32,989 34,303 35,594 36,907 38,332 39,868	14.9613 15.8602 16.4917 17.1124 17.7438 18.4287 19.1672	
	COUR LLECTIC le E16 - R	ONS OFF	C	LEAD W REW SUI le E12 - R	PRVSR				
H A B C D E F	31,120 32,989 34,303 35,594 36,907 38,332 39,868	14.9613 15.8602 16.4917 17.1124 17.7438 18.4287 19.1672	H A B C D E F	32,299 34,303 35,594 36,907 38,332 39,868 41,225	15.5285 16.4917 17.1124 17.7438 18.4287 19.1672 19.8199				

-41--

APPENDIX E

SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2000 GREIU EMPLOYEES

CLERK TYPIST Code E01 - Range 4E			Co	DEPU CLERI de E20 - F	KI	DEPUTY CLERK II Code E21 - Range 12E			
H A B C D E F	21,387 22,672 23,338 24,279 24,921 25,793 26,665	10.2824 10.9002 11.2202 11.6725 11.9814 12.4006 12.8199	H A B C D E F	25,059 26,665 27,514 28,478 29,304 30,406 31,714	12.0476 12.8199 13.2281 13.6915 14.0887 14.6183 15.2470	H A B C D E F	27,652 29,304 30,406 31,714 32,861 34,009 35,363	$\begin{array}{c} 13.2943\\ 14.0887\\ 14.6183\\ 15.2470\\ 15.7986\\ 16.3503\\ 17.0013\end{array}$	
	DEPUT CLERK			DEPUT CLERK			BAILI	קוק	
Cod	le E22 - R		Cod	le E24 - R		Cod	le E06 - R		
H A B C D E	29,832 31,714 32,861 34,009 35,363 36,694 38,048 COUR RECORI de E10 - R 29,832 31,714 32,861 34,009 35,363 36,694	DER 2ange 4E 14.3424 15.2470 15.7986 16.3503 17.0013 17.6412	H A B C D E F F	34,651 36,694 38,048 39,516 41,100 42,499 43,968 URINAL TECHNIG de E02 - F 19,437	CIAN	Cod H A B C D E	27,652 29,304 30,406 31,714 32,861 34,009 35,363 WORK C SUPERVI le E15 - R 32,081 34,009 35,363 36,694 38,048 39,516	SOR ange 16E 15.4236 16.3503 17.0013 17.6412 18.2921 18.9981	
F	38,048	18.2921				F	41,100	19.7595	
	COUR LLECTIC le E16 - R	DNS OFF	LEAD WORK CREW SUPRVSR Code E12 - Range 17E						
H A B C	32,081 34,009 35,363 36,694 38,048	15.4236 16.3503 17.0013 17.6412 18.2921	H A B C D	33,297 35,363 36,694 38,048 39,516	16.0083 17.0013 17.6412 18.2921 18.9981				
D E F	39,516 41,100	18.9981 19.7595	E F	41,100 42,499	19.7595 20.4323				

APPENDIX F

SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2001 GREIU EMPLOYEES

CLERK TYPIST Code E01 - Range 4E			DEPUTY CLERK I Code E20 - Range 9E			DEPUTY CLERK II Code E21 - Range 12E			
H A B C D E	22,100 23,427 24,115 25,087 25,751 26,652	10.6248 11.2632 11.5938 12.0612 12.3804 12.8135	H A B C D E F	25,894 27,553 28,431 29,427 30,280 31,419 32,770	12.4488 13.2468 13.6686 14.1474 14.5579 15.1051 15.7547	H A B C D E	28,573 30,280 31,419 32,770 33,955 35,141	13.7370 14.5579 15.1051 15.7547 16.3247 16.8948	
F 27,553 13.2468 DEPUTY CLERK III Code E22 - Range 14E				DEPUT CLERK le E24 - R	ΓY IV	F 36,540 17.5674 BAILIFF Code E06 - Range 12E			
H A B C D E F	30,826 32,770 33,955 35,141 36,540 37,916 39,314	14.8200 15.7547 16.3247 16.8948 17.5674 18.2287 18.9012	H A B C D E F	35,805 37,916 39,314 40,832 42,468 43,914 45,432	17.2140 18.2287 18.9012 19.6307 20.4175 21.1127 21.8423	H A B C D E F	28,573 30,280 31,419 32,770 33,955 35,141 36,540	$\begin{array}{c} 13.7370\\ 14.5579\\ 15.1051\\ 15.7547\\ 16.3247\\ 16.8948\\ 17.5674\end{array}$	
Co	COURT RECORDER Code E10 - Range 4E			URINALYSIS TECHNICIAN Code E02 - Range 1E			WORK CREW SUPERVISOR Code E15 - Range 16E		
H A B C D E F	30,826 32,770 33,955 35,141 36,540 37,916 39,314	14.8200 15.7547 16.3247 16.8948 17.5674 18.2287 18.9012	Н	20,084	9.6559	H A B C D E F	33,149 35,141 36,540 37,916 39,314 40,832 42,468	15.9372 16.8948 17.5674 18.2287 18.9012 19.6307 20.4175	
	COUR LLECTIC le E16 - R	ONS OFF	LEAD WORK CREW SUPRVSR Code E12 - Range 17E						
H A B C D E F	33,149 35,141 36,540 37,916 39,314 40,832 42,468	15.9372 16.8948 17.5674 18.2287 18.9012 19.6307 20.4175	H A B C D E F	34,406 36,540 37,916 39,314 40,832 42,468 43,914	16.5414 17.5674 18.2287 18.9012 19.6307 20,4175 21.1127				

-43---

The parties set forth this understanding of the procedure which may be used to mutually select an arbitrator under the provisions of Article IX, Sec. 3, Step 4.

Either party may advance the names of up to three (3) proposed arbitrators. The other party may designate one of the proposed arbitrators as the mutual selection.

The arbitrator shall be contacted and asked if he/she would be willing to accept the appointment. If the arbitrator declines the appointment, the procedure may be repeated. This Memorandum shall not serve to prevent either party from rejecting all proposed names and proceeding with or insisting on the filing with the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS).

-44--

HOLIDAY ARRAIGNMENT OVERTIME ROTATION

The Court has the responsibility to provide overtime to qualified personnel within the Criminal Division (includes all clerks and bailiffs assigned to the department) for the purpose of Holiday Arraignments. The minimum number of personnel required to cover all Holiday Arraignments will be three (3) clerks and the Court Recorder, with a possible 4th clerk for extended holidays. This schedule will be available for volunteer sign up the first two weeks in January. The schedule will be inclusive of all Holiday Arraignments for the following year, including January 1 of the next year.

First option for Holiday overtime will be offered on a seniority basis, starting with the highest seniority employee. An employee may sign up for more than one vacancy. If enough qualified personnel do not sign up to fill the overtime slots available, the remaining vacancies shall be offered a second time to all eligible employees on a seniority basis, starting with the highest seniority person.

If any vacant slots remain, they shall be filled by the eligible employees who have not already volunteered for holiday shifts. Those individuals shall be required to sign up for all remaining holidays based on seniority, with the most senior employee getting first choice, and the least senior employees being required to work the excess holidays, if necessary, by rotation.

If there are any vacant slots remaining after the above procedures, or if there are no non-volunteers, unfilled slots will be assigned to the least senior eligible employees, based on selection by seniority within the group necessary to fill the slots. The size of the group shall match the number of unfilled slots.

Employees who volunteer for a specific schedule are obligated to work that schedule. In the event the employee is unable to work their schedule, it is the employee's responsibility to find a replacement.

-45-

The parties, during their negotiations over the 1 998-2001 Collective Bargaining Agreement, agreed to continue or amend the following matters as stated below:

- 1. There is a need for a suitable break area for non-smoking employees of the Court. The Court will continue to make a good-faith effort to locate a suitable, non-smoking break area.
- 2. The Court has agreed to review the appropriateness of the current classification for the following employees:

Court Recorders – Sharon Nethercot Karen Lewis Diane VanderMolen

If the Union is not satisfied with the results with the Court's review, it may use its available contract remedies.

- 3. Prior to any reclassification/reassignment of staff as a result of the Justice System Integrated (JSI) computer software, the Court agrees to both inform and discuss the proposed changes with the Union.
- 4. For purposes of interpretation of "immediate family" in Article XXIII, Section 1.a, the parties agree that the term "brother-in-law" or "sister-in-law" shall include the legal spouse of the employee's brother-in-law or sister-in-law.
- 5. The parties agree that the Court may develop a policy to implement the federal Family and Medical Leave Act. The Court's policy prior to January 1, 1996, may not, however, require an employee to involuntarily use accumulated vacation or compensatory time during a qualifying family medical leave. The Court may, any time it so chooses after January 1, 1996, reopen negotiations on this prohibition against requiring the use of vacation and compensatory time while on a family medical leave.
- 6. The parties have agreed that for purposes of time related benefits under the contract that time spent working in a CETA program for the Court will be counted. This will result in the following service dates for the following individuals:

Lozia Davis – 1/29/76 Sheila Dolly – 9/9/77 Diane Malloy – 9/12/74 Peggy Payne – 6/1/78

This extended service date shall not result in a change to the employee's current seniority date.

-46---

- 7. If and when the payroll system technology capacity is available to accommodate payroll deductions for a flexible benefit plan to allow employees to utilize pre-tax dollars for child care purposes, the Court agrees to negotiate that issue with the Union.
- 8. The parties agree that regardless of the date of ratification and signing of this Agreement, that wages shall be retroactive to January 1, 1998.

61ST JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT Date: 6.17-99 Bv_ 277 g l Its

Date: 6-22-99

GRAND APIDS INDEPENDENT UNION By _ ame neid

—47—

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT

The 61st District Court, the City of Grand Rapids, and the Grand Rapids Employees Independent Union ("GREIU") enter into the following Supplemental Agreement to the Master Bargaining Agreement covering the 61st District Court employees.

BACKGROUND

- 1. The classifications of Work Crew Supervisor, Urinalysis Technician, and Court Collections Officer, were accreted, by vote, to the bargaining unit of Court employees represented by the GREIU.
- 2. The parties are currently in negotiations over a successor agreement for the main bargaining unit.
- 3. The parties have agreed to initial terms and conditions of employment to integrate the accreted employees into the working conditions established for the main bargaining unit.

TERMS

1. Wages:

The classifications of Work Crew Supervisor and Collections Officer will receive a 2% increase based on current Court salary scales for the period January 1, 1997, through March 31, 1998. Effective April 1, 1998, the classifications of Work Crew Supervisor and Collections Officer shall be converted to the current GREIU wage scale, range 16A.

The Urinalysis Technician classification will receive no wage increase until April 1, 1998, at which time the wage scale shall be upgraded to the GREIU wage scale, range IA, Step H. There shall be no step movement for this position.

- 2. The current staff in the Work Crew Supervisor and/or Collections Officer classifications will continue to accrue vacation at the rate of ten (10) days for the first year, with one (1) additional day per year thereafter to a maximum of twenty-five (25 days. Any new hires into the classifications will be placed on the vacation scale in the Master Agreement.
- 3. Compensatory time for the accreted classifications shall be handled in accordance with the Master Agreement between the Court and the GREIU. To aid in this conversion, immediately upon acceptance of the interim agreement, each current employee in the accreted classifications may cash out all or a portion of his/her accrued compensatory time. Any Compensatory time not cashed out, and any subsequent accruals are subject to the payout provisions

-48---

under the Master Agreement, which provides a mandatory, annual payout of any compensatory time.

4. Bargaining unit seniority for the individuals in the classifications at the time of accretion shall commence upon the date that accretion occurred. For all others, the date of hire or entry into a covered classification shall be the seniority date.

Within the Urinalysis Technician and Work Crew Supervisor positions, an employee's rank for seniority purposes within the classification will be determined first by full-time employment, and then by last date of hire with the Court. Unit seniority shall be used for all purposes except retirement, longevity and vacation, which shall be calculated using the employee's most recent date of hire for the incumbents in the accreted positions.

For purposes of layoff/recall, Urinalysis Technician, Work Crew Supervisor, and Lead Work Crew Supervisor (when created) shall be considered a job series, in ascending order, realizing that gender is a bona fide occupational qualification within Urinalysis Technician classification.

- 5. Part-time employees are excluded from all fringe benefits provided under the Master Agreement, unless specifically stated to the contrary. The current parttime Work Crew Supervisor, Richard Yeiter, shall retain the prorated fringe benefit package provided to him prior tot the date of accretion, whenever he is assigned to this part-time position.
- 6. The Court and City agree to consider a classification upgrade for Wayne Wasilenski to the classification of *Lead* Work Crew Supervisor. The parties agree that within forty-five (45) days after ratification by all parties, that the parties will develop a job description for the Lead Work Crew Supervisor duties, which must be acceptable to both Union and Management. The position shall be placed at the GREIU wage scale, range 17A. The position will have a 6-month probationary period during which the Court may, at its sole discretion, demote Mr. Wasilenski back to a Work Crew Supervisor if it is not satisfied with his performance.
- 7. Except to the extent modified here, the remaining provisions of the Master Agreement will be applied to the accreted classifications.

-49---

61ST DISTRICT COURT Date: 6.17-99 By_ lge Its CITY OF GRAD 6 RAF Date: 6-28-99 By_ GRAND BAPIDS INDEPENDENT UNION Date: 6-22-99 9. wine By_ lenner Pricidia Its

__50__

HOLIDAY ARRAIGNMENT OVERTIME ROTATION

- 1. THE COURT HAS THE RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE OVERTIME TO QUALIFIED PERSONNEL WITHIN THE CRIMINAL DIVISION EXCLUDING THE BAILIFFS FOR THE PURPOSE OF HOLIDAY ARRAIGNMENTS. THE MINIMUM NUMBER OF PERSONNEL REQUIRED TO COVER ALL HOLIDAY ARRAIGNMENTS WILL BE THREE (3) CLERKS AND THE COURT RECORDER, WITH A POSSIBLE 4TH CLERK FOR EXTENDED HOLIDAYS.
- 2. EMPLOYEES WHO ARE INTERESTED IN WORKING HOLIDAY OVERTIME SHALL EXPRESS THEIR INTEREST IN WRITING NO LATER THAN THE 15TH OF DECEMBER FOR THE HOLIDAY GROUP BETWEEN JANUARY 1 AND JUNE 30 AND NO LATER THE 15TH DAY OF JUNE FOR THE HOLIDAY GROUP BETWEEN JULY 1 AND DECEMBER 31.
- 3. FIRST OPTION FOR HOLIDAY OVERTIME WILL BE OFFERED ON A SENIORITY BASIS, STARTING WITH THE HIGHEST SENIORITY EMPLOYEE. AN EMPLOYEE MAY SIGN UP FOR MORE THAN ONE VACANCY. IF ENOUGH QUALIFIED PERSONNEL DO NOT SIGN UP TO FILL THE OVERTIME SLOTS AVAILABLE, THE REMAINING VACANCIES SHALL BE OFFERED A SECOND TIME TO ALL ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES ON A SENIORITY BASIS, STARTING WITH THE HIGHEST SENIORITY PERSON.
- 4. IF ANY VACANT SLOTS REMAIN, THEY SHALL BE FILLED BY THE ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE NOT ALREADY VOLUNTEERED FOR HOLIDAY SHIFTS. THOSE INDIVIDUALS SHALL BE REQUIRED TO SIGN UP FOR ALL REMAINING HOLIDAYS BASED ON SENIORITY, WITH THE MOST SENIOR EMPLOYEE GETTING FIRST CHOICE, AND THE LEAST SENIOR EMPLOYEES BEING REQUIRED TO WORK THE EXCESS HOLIDAYS, IF NECESSARY BY ROTATION. IF YOU HAVE WORKED DURING THE FIRST SIX MONTHS OF THE YEAR (BY VOLUNTEERING OR FORCED IN) YOU WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED A NON-VOLUNTEER FOR THE SECOND HALF OF THE YEAR. IF THERE ARE ANY VACANT SLOTS REMAINING AFTER THE ABOVE PROCEDURES, UNFILLED SLOTS WILL BE ASSIGNED TO THE LEAST SENIOR ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES, BASED ON SELECTION BY SENIORITY WITHIN THE GROUP NECESSARY TO FILL THE SLOTS. THE SIZE OF THE GROUP SHALL MATCH THE NUMBER OF UNFILLED SLOTS.

-51-

5. EMPLOYEES WHO VOLUNTEER FOR A SPECIFIC SCHEDULE ARE OBLIGATED TO WORK THAT SCHEDULE. IN THE EVENT THE EMPLOYEE IS UNABLE TO WORK THEIR SCHEDULE, IT IS THE EMPLOYEE'S RESPONSIBILITY TO FIND A REPLACEMENT.

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE EMPLOYEES OF THE CRIMINAL **DIVISION ON JUNE**

CRIMINAL DIVISION STEWARD

Karen Zeurs

G-17-99 ге *G-17-9*9

CHIEF STEWARD

DATE

DATE

-52-

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS CITY RULES AND REGULATIONS

The purpose of these Rules and Regulations is not to restrict the rights of anyone, but to define them and to protect the rights of all and to insure cooperation.

ALL EMPLOYEES SHALL ABIDE BY THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS. FAILURE TO DO SO SHALL RESULT IN DISCIPLINARY ACTION.

- 1. When leaving work prior to the end of your shift for any reason, you shall secure permission from supervision prior to leaving work or punching out.
- 2. Report all known needed repairs and/or safety hazards on equipment and property to supervision.
- 3. Report to work on time, able and prepared to perform assigned duties.
- 4. Provide supervision in your department or division with at least a twentyminute notification prior to the start of your work shift if you will be absent or late.
- 5. Notify supervision upon completion of your work assignment.
- 6. Report any accident in which you are involved to supervision as soon as possible.
- 7. Report all damage of City equipment, tools or property to your supervisor as soon as possible.
- 8. Report all personal injuries to your supervisor on the same day in which they occur.
- Notify the Personnel Services Office and your supervisor of any change in address, telephone number, marital status or number of dependents on a form or forms provided for that purpose.
- 10. Perform assigned duties in a diligent fashion at all times during working hours.
- 11. Be aware of all notices posted by Management on the Management bulletin board. Employees will be held responsible for work rules that are unique to their department. In the future, work rules will be posted and may not necessarily be included on this list.
- 12. ABIDE BY ALL SAFETY RULES AND REGULATIONS.

—53—

Committing any of the following violations will be sufficient grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, depending upon the seriousness of the offense in the judgment of Management.

- 1. Stealing, abusing, misusing, removing, or deliberately destroying City property, tools, equipment or the property of City employees.
- 2. Marring, marking or defacing any surface of any municipal building.
- 3. Using intoxicating beverages, marijuana or narcotics while on duty, while on City property, or at such time before reporting for duty that will interfere with one's mental or physical ability to satisfactorily perform assigned duties.
- 4. Failing to notify your supervisor that you are using prescribed medication or a nonprescription drug that could interfere with your ability to perform your assigned duties in a safe and efficient manner.
- 5. Selling or possession of intoxicating beverages, marijuana or narcotics while on duty or City property.
- 6. Conducting or betting on any game of chance involving money or any representation of value while on duty or City property.
- 7. Unauthorized possession of firearms, weapons, and/or explosives while on duty or while on City property.
- 8. Using abusive language, threatening, intimidating, coercing and/or fighting with employees, Management or the general public.
- 9. Engaging in obscene or indecent conduct.
- 10. Sleeping during working hours.
- 11. Loitering after your scheduled work shift on City property not normally used by the general public.
- 12. Soliciting for any purpose without prior authorization from Management.
- 13. Horseplay, creating a distraction, interfering with an employee or causing unsafe or unsanitary working conditions.
- 14. Salvaging for personal gain while on duty or with City property.
- 15. Falsifying records, reports, documents or knowingly misrepresenting any information requested by Management.
- 16. Loaning or giving to another individual an employee's personal City identification or parking pass.
- 17. Conducting personal business while on duty or upon City property without written authorization.

—54—

- 18. Using your position of employment with the City to directly or indirectly gain benefits, favors, money, advantages, privileges or anything of value other than regular compensation.
- 19. Disregarding or refusing to obey an order, either written or verbal, from a foreperson, supervisor, or other appropriately identified Management personnel.
- 20. Destroying, altering or removing any materials or information posted by Management.
- 21. Supporting a restriction of output, slowdown or any unauthorized interruption of assigned duties.
- 22. Taking more than fifteen minutes for a rest period or more than one rest period during each half work shift. (Note: Total time away from the job for each rest period shall not exceed fifteen minutes.)
- 23. Congregating with City vehicles during rest periods at one coffee shop or restaurant (three or more City vehicles).
- 24. Failing to punch your time card as required.
- 25. Failing to punch your time card when leaving for or returning from a doctor or dental appointment.
- 26. Punching time cards other than your own.
- 27. Altering, discarding or destroying time cards. Tampering with time clocks.
- 28. Using any City vehicle, equipment or property for personal business, personal gain or convenience of a City employee or members of an employee's family or any other individual.
- 29. Using any City vehicle to transport any individual not employed by the City, unless required by City business.
- 30. Operating vehicles or equipment without possession of a valid driver's license or authorization consistent with City or State laws.
- 31. Unnecessarily allowing City vehicles or equipment to idle or leave keys in City vehicles or equipment unattended.
- 32. Leaving a City vehicle or equipment in such a manner that will present a safety hazard to the public or any employee.
- 33. Unauthorized use or operation of City vehicles, machines, tools, and/or equipment.

Effective date: April 19, 1976

—55—



